Public Document Pack

Overview and Scrutiny Board
Dear Member,
You are invited to attend the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Board to be held as
follows for the transaction of the business indicated.
David Wilcock
Monitoring Officer
DATE:

Wednesday, 3 November 2021

TIME:

2.00 pm (Briefing for Board Members only at 1.45pm)

VENUE:

Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record
this meeting.
AGENDA
GUIDANCE ON THE RETURN TO FACE TO FACE COUNCIL
MEETINGS

(Pages 1 - 4)

1

Apologies for absence.

2

Declarations of Interest.

3

Minutes of meeting held on 6 October 2021.

(Pages 5 - 8)

4

Customer Service - Post Pandemic and Digital Inclusion.

(Pages 9 - 16)

5

Treasury Management Strategy Mid Year Review 2021/22.

(Pages 17 - 28)

6

Work Programme 2020/21.

(Pages 29 - 32)

7

Any other business.

8

Date and Time of Next Meeting:
Wednesday 1st December
 Pre-meet for Board Members only at 1:45pm
 Overview & Scrutiny Board meeting at 2:00pm

Contact Officer:
Claire Edwards - Democratic
Services

Tel
No:
E-Mail:

0161 793 2602
decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Annex
Return to face to face meetings in The Salford Suite at the Civic
Centre from 1st September 2021
It is planned to return to face to face meetings in The Salford Suite in the Old Town
Hall Building at the Civic Centre from Wednesday 1st September 2021.
The Salford Suite is the only available room that is large enough to hold meetings
and still comply with social distancing and Covid safe guidelines, as advised by
Public Health.
Everyone involved has worked hard to ensure that the transfer of face to face
meetings to the Salford Suite will be held in a COVID-19 secure environment. Your
safety is our upmost priority, whilst also supporting transparency, accountability and
effective decision making.
This briefing note outlines the arrangements in place and the guidelines that we are
all asked to adhere to ensure everyone is kept safe and the city council’s decision
making remains legally compliant.
1. General guidelines for meetings
a. It should be possible to hold most of the decision making meetings back in the
Salford Suite but it will not be possible to hold the meetings of the Council,
the Health and Wellbeing Board, Licensing and Safety Regulatory Panel
(taxis) and Planning and Transportation Regulatory Panel, due to the number
of people required to attend and so they will remain at 100 Embankment for the
foreseeable future. There may also be times, when the date and times of
meetings clash, that one may need to move to 100 Embankment.
2. Using the Salford Suite for face to face meetings
It is very important, for everyone’s safety, that you only visit the Salford Suite when
attending meetings.
a. Where to enter the building
You must enter the building by the main front door of the Old Town Hall building.
You will need to be let into the building as a pass is required so an officer from
Democratic Services should be on hand to direct you safely to The Salford Suite.

Please note: If you are attending an evening meeting and you have difficulty entering via the
main front door shown above, please use the intercom at the Main Reception (in the grey building
behind the Old Town Hall Building shown above) to contact the security officer to gain access.

Last updated 05.10.21

Page 1

b. Areas of the building that are closed to people attending meetings
• Extensive rebuilding renovations are taking place in the Civic Centre so
access to rooms and space is very limited. Most of the building will remain
closed and many contractors will be working on site.
• Other members of the public are also using the building to access the
Registrars offices and the ceremony rooms and arrangements are in place for
them to do so safely, so there will be no access to the Registrars corridor
and the ceremony room’s corridor.
c. Toilets
• The toilets on the first floor on the committee room corridor must be used.
The Registrars corridor will not be open to members, officers and members of
the public attending meetings in The Salford Suite.
• The accessible toilet can be used on the Registrars corridor if required and an
officer from Democratic services will act as a marshal on the corridor so
members can use it. Please alert the clerk in attendance at the meeting on
the day.
3. Guidance for attending the meetings in a COVID-secure manner
a. Lateral flow testing and PCR tests
• A vital element of our COVID-secure plans is that everyone attending should
complete a COVID-19 lateral flow home tests three days before the
meeting and on the morning of the meeting. You can order or collect a home
testing kit by:
- Ordering a box of test kits to be delivered to your home
- Collecting a box of test kits from a local collection point
•

If you test positive before or on the day you were meant to attend the meeting
under no circumstances should you attend. If your lateral flow test is
positive you will then need to book a complementary PCR Test and follow
national guidance on self-isolating.

•

Despite all the COVID-secure measures we have put in place there remains a
residual risk and coronavirus can make anyone seriously ill. For some of you
the risk is higher, particularly if you are clinically extremely vulnerable or if
they are at significant risk or you have one or more health conditions as a
number of risk factors may interact as well as health conditions.

•

You may wish to take medical advice about your particular circumstances, if
either of the above applies to you before you make a decision about attending
face to face meetings.

b. Attending the meeting on the day in The Salford Suite
• Please arrive at least 20 minutes before the start of the meeting to allow for
controlled access to the building and meeting space.
• The meeting will be run in line with Government guidance, and using the
principle of ‘hands, face, space and fresh air’. You are asked to regularly
wash and sanitise your hands, wear a face covering unless you hold a

Last updated 05.10.21

Page 2

•
•

medical exemption, and please maintain a social distance (1.5m) from others
at all times whilst attending meetings.
You may remove your mask when you are seated but please wear your face
covering when moving around the room or when on the corridor.
Movement around the meeting spaces will be kept to an absolute minimum
with pre-defined entrances and exits and restricted areas, as outlined above.

4. Meetings continuing at 100 Embankment
a. Lateral flow testing and PCR tests
The guidance listed under 3a above also applies at 100 Embankment.
b. Travelling to 100 Embankment
• There are a range of travel options to 100 Embankment, and full details can
be found at this link: https://embankmentmanchester.com/transport-options.
• It is a 4 minute walk from Manchester Victoria train and tram stations
• The Free Bus stops outside both Salford Central Station and 100
Embankment
• There is secure cycle storage and showers on site.
c. Parking at 100 Embankment
• There is onsite parking in the underground QPark (Deansgate North)
immediately below the building. Discounts are available for parking booked in
advance (https://www.q-park.co.uk/en-gb/cities/manchester/deansgatenorth/). Cleminson Street remains the closest Salford City Council parking.
• Taxi drop off is available immediately to the front door of the building.

Last updated 05.10.21

Page 3

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3
Overview and Scrutiny Board
6th October 2021
Meeting commenced: 14:00
Meeting ended: 15:25 and was followed by a training session for members on the Collection Fund

Present in Person
Councillors:
Bellamy, Brocklehurst, Burch, Gina Reynolds (in the chair), Sharpe and Joan Walsh
Invited guest: Councillor Hinds

Clerk:
Carol Eddleston – Democratic Services

Officers in Attendance Online
Joanne Hardman – Chief Finance Officer
Chris Hesketh – Head of Financial Management

1. Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Dickman, K Garrido, Pevitt and
Turner.

2. Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.

3. Minutes of the Previous Meeting and Matters Arising
The minutes of the meeting held on 6th September 2021 were approved as a correct record subject
to the correction of the start and end times and the addition of a reference to the fact that the
formal meeting was preceded by a training session on treasury management.
Councillor Reynolds reported that she had circulated further information on Minimum Revenue
Provision (MRP) and she thanked Councillor K Garrido for raising Treasury Management training at
full Council. This had now been arranged.
RESOLVED, THAT: subject to the amendments outlined above, the minutes of the meeting held on
6th September 2021 be approved as a correct record.

4. Six Monthly Updates of the Scrutiny Panels
Scrutiny Panel chairs and vice-chairs presented a summary of the work that their panels had carried
out to date in 2021/22 or had planned for the remainder of 2021/22, with the following aspects
highlighted:


Children’s Scrutiny Panel
o Corporate Parenting Panel (CPP) meeting feedback from members had been added as a
standing item and the chair had met with the Lead Member to discuss the mechanism for
feedback from / scrutiny of the CPP.

Page 5

o Corporate Parenting Panel was undergoing a review and now would be an excellent time for
members to join it who not been on it before.
o The Chair had attended an excellent LGA training session, designed primarily for Children’s
Scrutiny chairs, but which he would recommend to scrutiny chairs generally.


Community & Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel
o The Neighbourhoods Review scheduled for January 2022 would provide a good opportunity
to review the arrangements implemented following the boundary changes in May 2021.
o The Abeyance List included some interesting items for the panel to scrutinise.



Growth & Prosperity Scrutiny Panel
o Impact of the end of the Furlough Scheme on businesses in Salford would be particularly
interesting.
o Review of Travel Plans – developers tended to be amenable to a relatively small amount
being set aside specifically to appoint a co-ordinator to take responsibility for the plan.
o Ongoing lobbying of Highways England for greater protection of wildlife with success at
getting our suggestions implemented nationally.
o Government incentives for installing electric vehicle charging points had been scaled back as
costs had come down.
o Update on Gulley Cleaning and Maintenance was scheduled shortly and it was
acknowledged that parked cars sometimes inevitably hindered effective access.



Health & Social Care Scrutiny Panel
o COVID-19 Update and NHS Reforms (including disbanding of Public Health England) were
now standing items.
o There seemed to be some confusion amongst secondary school Head Teachers and Business
Management teams in particular about the current guidance on atte ndance if somebody in
the household tested positive for COVID-19 and it was suggested that it would be timely for
a reminder to be sent to all schools.
o Verbal and physical violence against NHS staff had long been an issue but seemed to be
getting worse in the current climate. This would be discussed at the October meeting.
o There had been a lengthy discussion at the meeting earlier in the day about GP access,
including concerns about potential delays in diagnoses and the difficulties faced by some
residents in actually securing/attending a GP appointment, particularly those who were not
confident using / did not have access to technology. This opened up a wider discussion
about the digital inclusion that the Council was doing and the fact that the topic was cross
cutting and not limited purely to the Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel .

[Clerk’s note:
Reference was made to Quality Accounts (SRFT, GMMH, NWAS) on the abeyance list. A Quality
Account is a written report, which NHS healthcare service providers are required to publish on the
NHS website each year, summarising the quality of their services during the previous financial year.
Publication fulfils providers’ obligation to submit the report to the Secretary of State.
One of the elements included in the Quality Account relates to clinical audit. The Quality Account
requires details of the trust’s clinical audit participation for each of the national audits, enquiries and

Page 6

quality improvement programmes they participate in, along with information related to
improvements responding to clinical audit report recommendations.
Following the meeting Councillor Reynolds received the following responses to questions raised in
the course of the meeting which she had followed up with Debbie Brown and Steve Fry:


Question: Do we know how many people are digitally excluded in Salford?



Answer: We predict it is still around 15k who don’t have full digital skills, we have created
a digital risk index that takes into account numerous factors that add to people becoming
digitally excluded, this is something we can demo. This index really allows us to focus on
delivery plans within specific neighbourhoods.



Question: When did SCC last promote an offer of support with regards to getting online in
the ‘LIFE IN Salford’ magazine?



Answer: We regularly promote aspects of the programme, for example, ‘cloud coffee and
chat’ was In the latest addition. On reflection we could add a more focused section on
digital everyone, explaining what the partnership is about and what it offers to residents.
We will speak to comms about this, so we can secure a spot in the next edition.

Officers have informed Councillor Reynolds that they are due to bring an update on customer
services to the next meeting. They have said they will ensure that we also have a good focus on the
digital inclusion work we have carried out, including what is planned for the future. This will provide
us with an opportunity to scrutinise this area further.]
RESOLVED, THAT:
1) the update on the work of the Scrutiny Panels carried out to date and planned for the
remainder of 2021/22 be noted.
2) Councillors Brocklehurst, Burch and Sharpe discuss their thoughts on how best, and through
which forum, to take forward wider discussions on GP access.
3) Public Health be recommended to re-circulate to all schools the current guidance on
attendance and self isolation.

5. Work Programme 2021/22
Councillor Reynolds explained that the Audit and Accounts Committee Update had been moved to
the meeting on 1st December to better align with the delayed audit sign-off of the council’s
Statement of Accounts.
RESOLVED, THAT: the work programme as presented be agreed.

6. Any Other Business
There were no items of any other business.

7. Date and Time of Next Meeting
Wednesday 3rd November at 2:00pm (pre-meet for board members only at 1:45pm).

Page 7

Page 8

Agenda Item 4
Part 1 – Open to the Public

_____________________________________________________________________________________

REPORT OF THE
STRATEGIC DIRECTOR FOR SERVICE REFORM
_____________________________________________________________________________________

TO OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD
ON
Wednesday 3rd November 2021
_____________________________________________________________________________________

TITLE: Customer Service – Post pandemic and Digital Inclusion
_____________________________________________________________________________________
RECOMMENDATION:

That the Overview & Scrutiny Board note and support the work outlined in the report.
__________________________________________________________________
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

This paper provides information on the council’s Customer service offer within the localities; it
provides information on progress of individual initiatives covering 3 main areas of focus:
Customer Services – Gateways/Spirit of Salford
BetterOff in Salford – Cloud Coffee and Chat and BetterOff in Salford Website
Digital You - Phase 2
_____________________________________________________________________________________
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: None
_____________________________________________________________________________________
KEY DECISION: No

1

Page 9

This report is to provide an update on:
1. Customer Services – Gateways/Spirit of Salford
2. BetterOff in Salford – Cloud Coffee and Chat and BetterOff in Salford Website
3. Digital You - Phase 2
1. Customer Services – Gateways/Spirit of Salford update:
Gateways offer a range of public services under one roof in a friendly and welcoming
environment. We have specially trained staff on hand to provide information, help and advice on
a range of services. There are five centres across the city located in Broughton, Pendleton,
Swinton, Eccles and Walkden. All have a mixture of services that are in addition to the city
council. At the start of the Covid Pandemic and following Government Instruction, the Gateways
closed its customer service reception desks.
On the 20 March 2020 our Digital, Data and Technology (DDAT) and Customer Services teams
started to plan our humanitarian response to the Covid crisis. A decision was made that we had
the skills and technology to build what would turn out to be lifeline to our most vulnerable
residents in the city during the pandemic and beyond.
The Spirit of Salford Helpline was set-up to support customers during the coronavirus. The
helpline and online referral system (CRM) were built and operational in 72 hours. This included
enabling and equipping staff to be able to work from home and operate a virtual call centre.
The helpline is delivered by the Locality Service and managed by the Locality Service Manager,
we have been providing support to customers online and over the telephone by:
•
•

Taking incoming calls and completing a referral webform with customers
Making outbound calls to our most vulnerable citizens (shielded) and completing a
referral webform
Receiving and mediating Spirit of Salford webforms completed online by customers
Completing and facilitating automated referrals to appropriate support services
Working closely with Elected Members and services on escalated and urgent enquiries

•
•
•

The Spirit of Salford Helpline is open Monday to Friday 8.30am - 6.00pm and Saturdays
9.00am – 13.00pm.
Spirit of Salford Helpline • Salford City Council
1.2 Current Services available through the SOS Helpline:




Council Tax
Benefits
Salford Assist and emergency funds
2

Page 10















Social Well-Being including dog walking and shopping assistance
Welfare Rights & Debt Advice
Citizens Advice Salford
Mental Health Support
Public Health
Digital Buddies
Salford CVS
Connexions
Pregnant Mums
Salford Credit Union
Skills and Work
Test and Trace Payments
Housing and Homelessness

Since opening the SOS helpline, we have received 30,300 incoming calls, made 12,000
outbound calls to our most vulnerable residents across the city and delivered over 3,000
emergency food parcels.
1.3 Customer Feedback
•

Really impressed – My mum and Dad received a welfare call today from the Spirit of
Salford. It’s a huge worry lifted for me to know they are not on their own.
•
The shopping came in a taxi and a lovely young man brought it. He was lovely and
asked me if there was anything else, she needed. I just want to say I can't believe how
wonderful you are and how grateful I am for your help – I live in a brilliant city!
•
Wow wow wow, amazing guys
•
This is amazing, the help you guys have provided throughout the pandemic is
unbelievable
•
I am one of the people who has used the SOS line, the help that three of your teams
have helped me with has been unbelievable. Me and my family will be forever grateful x
•
When I needed someone to pick my food and prescription up because I was shielded,
your team helped! It was a god send.
•
The stuff you are all doing around digital inclusion is amazing. It is needed now more
than ever. So proud to see Salford leading the way on this!
•
Salford are leading the way forward...I have family that live outside Salford that do not
get as much support as I do in Salford...truly blessed to be in Salford.
•
I work for another local authority and this is brilliant what you have pulled together, true
partnership working.
2. BetterOff in Salford – Cloud Coffee and Chat and BetterOff in Salford Website
During COVID-19 we have launched our brand-new cloud coffee and chat sessions.
We’re now offering face to face chats for customers to meet with a member of a locality team
via video calls to replace the drop in BetterOff sessions usually held in our Gateways.
3

Page 11

It’s easy to do. If customers need help with rent or council tax, are struggling with money or
simply don’t know where to turn, we can help them become better off. Our advisors provide
support on council tax, business rates and benefits or put customers in touch with a wide range
of services that can help such as housing and health and well-being.
Other than having to make your own brew, it is just the same as the Gateway sessions except
in the comfort of the customer’s own home. This service has the bonus of offering a text type
service that our advisors are happy to show the customer how to use.
Customers can book a 30-minute session with a local Gateway representative, choosing a date
and time that’s suits them.
Since the new service launched in June, we have helped 3,000 customers online with
100% customer satisfaction.
2.1 BetterOff Salford Website
BetterOff Salford is about helping residents become better off and helping them to help
themselves. It’s part of our plan to create a better and fairer Salford by tackling poverty and
inequality.
Our new website, BetterOff Salford, is an easy way to find out if you’re entitled to benefits and
help you apply for them online. At the click of a button, you can also find jobs, childcare, and
information on debt or money management.
Since 2018, the total potential customer monetary gain is 24 million, this figure is calculated on
the basis that the customer applied for the relevant benefits / support.
3. Digital You update – Phase 2:
The pandemic has caused a seismic shift in highlighting the nations need for access to three
main verticals - Kit, Connectivity and Skills. In Salford a clear target operating model has been
created which harnesses the learning of Digital You and creates a clear role across the City.
In December 2020, the locality service recruited a full time Digital Inclusion Manager (Karen
Snape) to help drive digital and social inclusion forwards and Digital Everyone was create d.
This section will explain what is happening as part of the roadmap:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Digital providers network
Digital Everyone Partnership Website
Device Gifting Scheme
Salford Schools Device Donation Scheme / GM’s Tech Fund
Community Calling Programme
Young Persons Tech Committee (YPTC)
Skills City in the Community
4

Page 12

3.1 Digital provider’s network
Digital Everyone has mobilised a ‘movement’ of organisations and projects with the capacity to
engage digitally excluded residents and incorporate digital support into their service delivery,
rather than seeing digital as a bolt-on. To help achieve this we have launched our Digital
Providers Network, a network of digital partners and providers from across the public sector,
voluntary and community sector as well as business partners. This network serves to jointly
tackle digital exclusion and will work collaboratively to find solutions for our residents. The
network provides readily available and ongoing digital support via our online centres that are
placed in the heart of our communities
3.2 Digital Everyone Partnership Website - https://digitalinclusion.salford.gov.uk/
The Digital Providers Network have co-designed a new Digital Inclusion Partnership Website –
a single front door for digital inclusion in Salford. The website aims to provide a hyper-local
experience for customers and organisations who need digital information and support, the
website will: •

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Feature events
Promote projects
Share good news stories
Showcase what we have achieved
Skills and Jobs Section
Single space to access support to learn digital skills in the place where you live
Marketplace for sponsors, gifts, and funding opportunities
Blogs section
Google Translate

The site showcases the great work that is happening across the city, it is an interactive space
that can be updated instantly by members of the Digital Providers Network. We have
collaborated with the network and listened to their requests as to what they would like to see on
the website.
3.3 Results from the Digital Everyone Partnership Website:
3,285 users since it launched in April 2021
27,985 Website visits since it launched in April 2021
372 New Users in the last month
3.3 Device Gifting Scheme
Salford Digital Providers Network have secured £50,000 from Greater Manchester Combined
Authority to fund a digital inclusion project in Salford. The network has agreed to purchase
devices to gift to our most vulnerable and digitally excluded residents. Successful applicants will
5

Page 13

receive a device and wraparound support to become comfortable, confident, and safe onli ne.
The scheme will gift 500 devices to support our most vulnerable residents to tackle social
isolation and access to online services. The tablets will be gifted to digitally excluded residents
in Salford, via an application process which will be panel approved by members of the Digital
Providers Network.
Online applications have been made via Salford Council Website by the individual and referrals
have also been made by members of the Digital Providers Network. Once the applications are
approved, applicants are contacted to arrange collection of devices and a support package. The
scheme was launched In March 2021 and so far, 277 devices have been gifted.

3.4 Salford Schools Device Donation Scheme / GM’s Tech Fund
Salford is supporting the GM’s Tech Fund and assisting in the distribution of donated devices to
Salford Schools. Salford have also set up a direct donation scheme for businesses that would
like to donate direct to Salford. The scheme has been shared via social media and to our
businesses network which has resulted in several direct donations in Salford. The scheme was
launched earlier this year and so far we have received 96 donated devices.
3.5 Community Calling Programme
The Community Calling programme is a mobile device donation scheme, working with a charity
called Hubbub who have partnered up with O2 to offer a mobile device donation scheme. Old
smartphones are donated to the scheme and are data-wiped and then re-circulated (free of
charge) into the community. There are five drop off and collection points across the city in all
our gateways/hub. Each successful applicant will receive a mobile device plus 12 months of
6

Page 14

unlimited calls and messages and 6gb of data per month for 12 months. Wraparound support
will be provided to ensure that the successful applicant can use the device to communicate,
transact and keep safe online.
Salford Council are working on upscaling donations into the scheme with an agreement being
made with Hubbub that any donations made to Salford will be recirculated into Salford. We will
be promoting both internal donations from Salford Council Employees and external donations
from both members of the public and local businesses. The scheme launched earlier this year
and so far we have received and recirculated 30 phones.
3.6 Young Persons Tech Committee (YPTC)
Working with the Youth Service, Digital Everyone has recently established a Young Persons
Tech Committee. The fortnightly group enables young people to have a voice in tackling digital
exclusion in our city and shape our services. The chair of the YPTC also attends the Digital
Providers Network ensuring that young people have a representation at these meetings. We are
working with our YPTC to create five technology spaces in each of our gateway/hub localities,
bringing access to tech in the community.
3.7 Skills City in the Community:
Working with IN4 at the Landing as part of the kickstart programme, Skills City will operate a
comprehensive carousel of digital and technology careers education, working with young people
and adults from disadvantaged and underrepresented communities showcasing the entirety of
digital and technology futures, aligning skills with knowledge and tailoring personality and
passion to career choices.
The Gateway network will be working with IN4 to develop taster sessions that will be delivered
in the Gateways. Taking Skills City into the community will enable us to reach, on board, and
recruit individuals that previously would not have had fair access. This is in addition to several
digital inclusion initiatives that take place locally in our gateways.
Learners will receive development across 6 core areas:
• Cyber
• AI and Machine Learning
• Immersive XR
• Cloud and IoT
• Software Engineering
• Creative Digital Media
4. Recommendations:
That the Overview & Scrutiny Board note and support the work outlined in the report.

7

Page 15

____________________________________________________________________________
CONTACT OFFICER: Steven Fry, Assistant Director of Customer & Digital
TEL NO: 0161 607 8600

8

Page 16

Agenda Item 5
PART 1 – OPEN TO THE PUBLIC

REPORT OF THE LEAD MEMBER FOR FINANCE AND SUPPORT SERVICES
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD, 3 NOVEMBER 2021
COUNCIL, 17 NOVEMBER 2021
TITLE: TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY MID YEAR REVIEW 2021/22
RECOMMENDATIONS:
It is recommended that Members note the contents of the report and approve the
update to the prudential indicators.
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
This report provides a progress report on the treasury management strategy for
2021/22 and updates the prudential indicators. Members are requested to approve the
update to the prudential indicators
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:
Various working papers in the Finance division including:


Treasury management strategy 2021/22 reported to council on 24 February 2021



Treasury management practices TMPs 1 to 12 and supporting schedules



Treasury management in the public services, code of practice and cross-sectoral
guidance notes (CIPFA), “CIPFA Code”



Treasury management in the public services, guidance notes for local authorities
including police authorities and fire authorities (CIPFA), “CIPFA guidance”

KEY DECISION:

YES / NO

DETAILS: overleaf

1

Page 17

1.

BACKGROUND
1.1
The Council operates a balanced budget which broadly means cash raised
during the year will meet its cash expenditure. Part of the treasury management
operation ensures this cash flow is adequately planned with surplus monies being
invested in low-risk counterparties, providing adequate liquidity initially before
considering optimising investment return.
1.2
The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding
of the Council’s capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need
of the Council, essentially longer-term cash flow planning to ensure the Council can
meet its capital spending schedule. This management of longer-term cash may involve
arranging long or short-term loans or using longer term cash flow surpluses and on
occasion any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council risk or cost
objectives.
1.3

Treasury management is defined as:
“The management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking,
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks
associated with those activities and the pursuit of optimum performance
consistent with those risks.”

2.

INTRODUCTION
2.1
This report has been written in accordance with the requirements of the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on
Treasury Management (revised 2017).
The primary requirements of the Code are as follows:


Creation and maintenance of a Treasury Management Policy Statement which
sets out the policies and objectives of the Council’s treasury management
activities.



Creation and maintenance of Treasury Management Practices which set out the
way the Council will seek to achieve those policies and objectives.



Receipt by the full council of an annual Treasury Management Strategy
Statement - including the Annual Investment Strategy and Minimum Revenue
Provision Policy - for the year ahead, a Mid-year Review Report and an Annual
Report, (stewardship report), covering activities during the previous year.



Delegation by the Council of responsibilities for implementing and monitoring
treasury management policies and practices and for the execution and
administration of treasury management decisions.



Delegation by the Council of the role of scrutiny of treasury management strategy
and policies to the Overview and scrutiny board.

2.2
This mid-year report has been prepared in compliance with CIPFA’s Code of
Practice on Treasury Management, and covers the following:


2

An economic update for the first part of the 2021/22 financial year;

Page 18

3.



A review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual
Investment Strategy;



The Council’s capital expenditure, as set out in the budget report, and prudential
indicators;



A review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2021/22;



A review of the Council’s borrowing strategy for 2021/22;



A review of compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits for 2021/22.

ECONOMIC UPDATE
3.1
At its latest meeting, ending on 22 September 2021, the Bank of England
Monetary Policy Committee voted to maintain the Bank Rate at 0.1%. There were no
changes to the programme of quantitative easing, although there were concerns that this
would add to inflationary pressures.
3.2
From the MPC September meeting, there were indications that interest rates
could rise. Potential labour shortages could push up wage growth which, along with
increased energy prices, would lead to increased levels of inflation with CPI rates
peaking at 4% during 2021.

4.

INTEREST RATE FORECAST

Table 1

Link Asset Services interest rate forecast:

4.1
Due to the coronavirus outbreak, the Bank of England took emergency action
in March 2020 to cut Bank Rate to 0.10%, the level at which it remains and is expected
to continue in the short term.
4.2
The forecast shows a small increase to 0.25% is expected in quarter 1 of
2022/23.
4.3
5.

The latest forecast shows PWLB rates gradually rising.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT AND ANNUAL
INVESTMENT STRATEGY UPDATE
5.1
The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2021/22 was
approved by the council on 24 February 2021. The council’s Annual Investment
Strategy, which is incorporated into the TMSS, outlines the council’s investment priorities
3

Page 19

as security of capital and liquidity. The council also aims to achieve the optimum return
(yield) in investments, commensurate with the proper levels of security and liquidity.
5.2
In the current economic climate, it is considered appropriate to keep a
significant proportion of investments short term (less than 1 year) and only invest with
high credit rated financial institutions or those guaranteed by the UK government, using
Link Asset Services’ suggested creditworthiness approach.
5.3
During the first half of 2021/22, investments with counterparties were within
the £15m limit.
5.4
During the first half of 2021/22 the council had not taken out any long-term
borrowing.
5.5
There are no policy changes to the TMSS; the details in this report update the
position in the light of the updated economic position and budgetary changes already
approved.
6.

THE COUNCIL’S CAPITAL POSITION (PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS)

Table 2

Prudential Indicator for Capital Expenditure £m for 2021/22
Original
Current
Revised
estimate
position
estimate
Capital expenditure
104.4
29.6
156.1
6.1
Table 2 shows the revised estimates for capital expenditure since the capital
programme was agreed in February 2021. The main increase in forecast spend is due to
schemes being reprofiled from the 2020/21 capital programme.

Table 3

Changes to the Financing of the Capital Programme 2021/22 £m
Original
Revised
estimate
estimate

Grants
Borrowing requirement
Total

48.7
55.8
104.5

82.5
73.6
156.1

6.2
Table 3 shows the funding of the capital expenditure plans. The borrowing
requirement increases the underlying indebtedness of the Council by way of the Capital
Financing Requirement (CFR), although this will be reduced in part by revenue charges
for the repayment of debt (the Minimum Revenue Provision).
Table 4

Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) £m 2021/22
Original
estimate
Capital financing requirement bfwd
703.8
Capital financing requirement
716.4
Annual change in CFR
12.6

Revised
estimate
673.0
719.6
46.6

6.3
The increase in the forecast annual change in the capital financing
requirement is due to the revised estimate for capital expenditure that has consequently
increased the borrowing requirement, as shown in tables 2 and 3.
4

Page 20

Table 5

Debt forecast £m

Borrowing
Other long-term liabilities
Total debt (yearend position)

Original
estimate
440.6
165.8
606.4

Current
position
332.8
168.1
500.9

Revised
estimate
369.0
165.5
534.5

6.4
The reduction in the forecast debt position is due to a reduction in the level of
temporary borrowing with the council not needing to renew temporary borrowing on its
maturity.
6.5
Long term liabilities reduce as PFI schemes payments are made and as
transferred debt (from the breakup of Greater Manchester Council) is repaid. By the end
of the year a further 6 months of payments will have been made, this will reduce the
balance nearer to the revised estimate.
6.6
A key control applied to treasury activity is a prudential indicator to ensure
that, over the medium term, debt will only be for a capital purpose, so no borrowing to
invest. Gross external borrowing should not, except in the short term, exceed the total of
CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for 2021/22 and
next two financial years. As the total debt at the end of the year is forecast to be
£534.5m and the forecast CFR is £719.6m, this control has been complied with.
6.7
This allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years. The
Council has approved a policy for borrowing in advance of need if it is considered that
this would be advantageous.
Table 6

Prudential Indicators Operational Boundary £m 2021/22
Original
estimate
Borrowing
590.5
Other long-term liabilities
195.8
Total debt (yearend position)
786.3

Revised
estimate
594.1
195.5
789.6

6.8The Operational Boundary for External Debt is based on the probable external debt
during the year. It is not a limit and actual borrowing could vary around this boundary for
short times during the year. It acts as an early warning indicator to ensure the authorised
limit is not breached. Similarly, to the authorised limit it also provides scope for the
Council to borrow in advance of need. The prudential indicators have are similar to the
original estimates.
6.9
The Chief Finance Officer reports that no difficulties are envisaged for the
current or future years in complying with this prudential indicator.
6.10
A further prudential indicator controls the overall level of borrowing. This is the
Authorised Limit which represents the limit beyond which borrowing is prohibited and
needs to be set and revised by Members. It reflects the level of borrowing which, while
not desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the longer term.
It is the expected maximum borrowing need with some headroom for unexpected
movements. This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local
Government Act 2003. The Authorised Limit is adjusted to reflect changes to the
council’s capital programme and the implementation of IFRS 16.

5

Page 21

Table 7

Prudential indicator - authorised limit for external debt £m
Original
Current
estimate
position
Borrowing
610.5
332.8
Other long-term liabilities
225.8
195.5
Total debt (yearend position)
836.3
528.3
6.11

7.

Revised
estimate
614.1
225.5
839.6

Appendix 2 details the prudential and treasury indicators for the next 4 years.

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO 2021/22
7.1
In accordance with the Code, it is the Council’s priority to ensure security of
capital and liquidity, and to obtain an appropriate level of return which is consistent with
the Council’s risk appetite. As shown by the forecasts in section 4, it is a very difficult
investment market in terms of earning the level of interest rates commonly seen in
previous decades as rates are very low and in line with the current 0.10% Bank Rate.
7.2
The Council held £64.26m of investments as at 30 September 2021 (£36.25m
at 31 March 2021) and the weighted average investment portfolio yield for the first 6
months of the year is 0.052% against current bank rate of 0.10%. The level of
investments varies throughout the year
7.3
The Chief Finance Officer confirms that the approved limits within the Annual
Investment Strategy were not exceeded during the first 6 months of 2021/22.
7.4
The Council’s budgeted investment return for 2021/22 is £0.010m, and
performance for the year to date is £0.007m. However, whilst reduced interest rates
have affected the council’s investment income, there has been a saving on the council’s
temporary borrowing budget with a budget for the year of £0.025m against costs of
£0.015m for the year to date.
7.5
The current investment counterparty criteria selection approved in the TMSS
is meeting the requirement of the treasury management function. It provides sufficient
creditworthy counterparties for the council’s investments.
7.6

8.

There has been no change in the council’s risk appetite for investments.

BORROWING
8.1
The Council’s capital financing requirement (CFR) for 2021/22 is forecast to
be £719.6m. The CFR denotes the Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital
purposes. If the CFR is positive the Council may borrow from the PWLB or the market
(external borrowing) or from internal balances on a temporary basis (internal borrowing).
The balance of external and internal borrowing is generally driven by market conditions.
Table 5 shows the Council’s current debt level of £332.8m and the yearend forecast of
£369.0m.
8.2
The option to use long term borrowing to finance this expenditure to minimise
the council’s interest rate risk exposure will be kept under review. This will include an
assessment of the different sources of funding available to the council.

6

Page 22

Table 8
Graph showing the movement in PWLB certainty rates since the start of
the current financial year

Table 9
Table showing the movement in PWLB certainty rates since the start of
the current financial year

8.3
PWLB rates have mostly been on a falling trend since May apart from very
short term rates which have been rising marginally.
8.4
year.
9.

No debt rescheduling has been undertaken to date in the current financial

OTHER
IFRS16 accounting standard
9.1
This accounting standard will come into effect from 1 April 2022 and be
outlined in the 2021/22 financial accounts. It specifies the principles for recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases as a response to concerns about
the lack of transparency in information. For any leases the council has entered or enters
into as a lessee, the assets and liabilities arising with a term of more than 12 months are
to be recognised in the financial statements unless they are of low value (less than £5k).

7

Page 23

9.2
The impact on the council is likely to be the recognition of additional assets on
the balance sheet leading to a significant increase in the CFR, due to the expected level
of leases the council has entered into of this nature. The prudential indicators table in
appendix 2 reflects an initial estimate based on information readily available. An exercise
to review all the council’s lease contracts is due to take place over the coming months.
Changes in risk appetite
9.3
The 2018 CIPFA Codes and guidance notes have placed enhanced
importance on risk management. Where an authority changes its risk appetite e.g. for
moving surplus cash into or out of certain types of investment funds or other types of
investment instruments, this change in risk appetite and policy should be brought to
members’ attention in treasury management update reports. There has been no change
in the council’s risk appetite for investments.
10.

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS
10.1
The council has not taken any new long term borrowing so far in this financial
year. The option to use long term borrowing to finance capital expenditure to minimise
the council’s interest rate risk exposure will be kept under review. The council has also
not taken any short-term borrowing so far in this financial year, although it will be
considered when appropriate based upon a review of interest rates available in the
market.
10.2

The council has remained within prudential limits in the review period.

10.3
Members are requested to approve the changes to the prudential indicators
detailed in appendix 2.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Treasury management strategy; budget strategy.
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: Not applicable
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:
The monitoring and control of risk underpins all treasury management activities. The
main risks are of adverse or unforeseen fluctuations in interest rates and security of
capital sums.
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor
The Treasury Management Strategy sets out the Council's policies for managing its
investments which includes giving priority to security and liquidity.
The Local Government Act 2003 (the Act) and supporting regulations requires the
Council to ‘have regard to’ the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s
(CIPFA) Prudential Code and the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice to set
Prudential and Treasury Indicators for the next three years to ensure that the Council’s
capital investment plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable. The Act therefore
8

Page 24

requires the Council to set out its Treasury Management Strategy at the start of each
new financial year and to prepare an Annual Investment Strategy (as required by
Investment Guidance subsequent to the Act); this sets out the Council’s policies for
managing its investments and for giving priority to the security and liquidity of those
investments.
The Council is also required to “determine for the current financial year an amount of
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) that it considers to be prudent.” It is also required
to submit a statement on the Council’s policy for its annual MRP to the Council for
approval before the start of the financial year to which the provision will relate.
The Treasury Management Strategy 2021/22 was set out in a report to Council and
approved by them on the 24 February 2021. This complied with the relevant
requirements of the Local Government Act 2003 and the CIPFA Treasury Management
Code. This further report to Council provides a progress report on the Treasury
Management Strategy for 2021/22.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: May Sung, Finance Manager
This report has been prepared by the Finance division of the Service Reform service
group. The costs of borrowing: minimum revenue provision, interest and debt
management expenses, are borne by the corporate capital financing budget.
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS provided by: Not applicable

HR IMPLICATIONS provided by: Not applicable

OTHER SERVICE GROUPS CONSULTED: Not applicable
CONTACT OFFICERS:Tony Thompstone
May Sung

TEL NO: 0161 793 2016
TEL NO: 0161 793 2851

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: None specifically.

9

Page 25

APPENDIX 1
Glossary of Terms
Base rate – the rate at which the Bank of England offers loans to the wholesale banks, thereby
controlling general interest rates in the economy.
Capital financing requirement – reflects the local authority underlying need to borrow for a
capital purpose.
Consolidated rate of interest (CRI) – is the average rate of interest for external borrowing during
the year.
Fixed rate funding - a fixed rate of interest throughout the time of the loan. The rate is fixed at the
start of the loan and therefore does not affect the volatility of the portfolio, until the debt
matures and requires replacing at the interest rates relevant at that time.
Gilts - The loan instruments by which the government borrows. Interest rates will reflect the level
of interest shown by investors when the government auctions gilts.
LOBO – “Lender offer, borrower option”, a financial instrument where the lender may choose to
vary the interest rate at certain break points. Only if the lender chooses to vary the interest
rate, the borrower has an option to terminate the arrangement at no penalty.
Market - The private sector financial institutions - banks, building societies etc.
Maturity profile - an illustration of when debts are due to mature, and either have to be renewed
or money found to pay off the debt. A high concentration in one year will make the council
vulnerable to current interest rates in that year.
Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) – the independent body which determines base rate.
PWLB - Public Works Loan Board. An institution managed by the government to provide loans to
public bodies at rates which reflect the rates at which the government is able to sell gilts.
Variable rate funding - The rate of interest either continually moves reflecting interest rates of the
day, or can be tied to specific dates during the loan period. Rates may change on a monthly,
quarterly or annual basis.
Volatility - The degree to which the debt portfolio is affected by current interest rate movements.
The more debt that matures in the year and needs replacing, and the more debt subject to
variable interest rates, the greater the volatility.
Yield curve - A graph of the relationship of interest rates to the length of the loan. A normal yield
curve will show interest rates relatively low for short term loans compared to long term loans.
An inverted yield curve is the opposite of this.

1

Page 26

APPENDIX 2
Table 10
Revised Prudential and Treasury Indicators £m
Prudential Indicators

2020/21
Actual

2021/22
Estimate

2022/23
Estimate

2023/24
Estimate

2024/25
Estimate

86.0

156.1

20.0

20.0

20.0

Capital financing requirement (CFR)

673.0

719.6

851.7

830.5

807.3

Total debt

518.6

534.5

681.4

668.9

643.9

Annual Change in CFR
Capital expenditure financing
Debt repayment provision MRP
Total

60.1
-50.6
9.5

86.5
-39.9
46.6

179.9
-47.9
132.1

20.0
-41.2
-21.2

20.0
-43.2
-23.2

Capital Expenditure

Table 11

Operational boundary for external debt £m

Treasury Indicators
Borrowing
Other long-term liabilities
Total

Table 12

2020/21

2022/23

594.1
195.5
789.6

2023/24

581.0
338.5
919.5

2024/25

566.8
328.8
895.6

550.3
318.7
869.0

Authorised limit for external debt £m
2020/21

Treasury Indicators

Borrowing
Other long-term liabilities
Total
Table 13

2021/22

602.7
182.5
785.2

2021/22

622.7
192.5
815.2

614.1
225.5
839.6

2022/23

2023/24

601.0
368.5
969.5

2024/25

586.8
358.8
945.6

560.3
348.7
909.0

Graph of CFR, total debt, operational boundary and authorised limit
1200.0
1000.0

£m

800.0
600.0
400.0
200.0
0.0
2020/21

2021/22

Capital financing requirement (CFR)

Table 14

Total debt

Operational boundary

2023/24
Authorised Limit

Maturity structure for fixed rate borrowing estimated position at year end
Upper Limit

Under 12 months
12 and within 24 months
24 months and within 5 years
5 years and within 10 years
10 years and above

2

2022/23

75%
50%
50%
50%
100%

Lower
Limit
0%
0%
0%
0%
25%

Page 27

%

£M

24%
11%
19%
7%
39%

125.7
61.2
100.6
39.2
207.8

Table 15

Maturity structure for variable rate borrowing estimated position at year end
Upper Limit

Lower Limit

%

£M

10%
0%
0%
0%
0%

0%
0%
0%
0%
0%

0%
0%
0%
0%
0%

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

Under 12 months
12 and within 24 months
24 months and within 5 years
5 years and within 10 years
10 years and above

Table 16

Upper Limit for Investments beyond 365 days estimated position at year end

Upper Limit for Investments beyond
365 days

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

Estimated
position at
year end

£40m

£40m

£40m

£40m

£0

The operational boundary limits for external debt reflect the estimate of the most likely, prudent, but
not worst case, scenario without the additional headroom included within the authorised limit.
These indicators should be considered together. Whilst all the council’s borrowing is fixed, the
amount due to mature in the next 12 months looks high at £125.7m, this is partly explained
because the figure includes £83.0m of LOBO loans that are callable in 2021/22, it is unlikely that
LOBO loans will be called over the next few years as the LOBO interest rates already exceed
current market rates and the option to change lies with the banks. The forecast £36.2m of
temporary borrowing due for renewal within 12 months; is in-line with the council’s current strategy.
For exceptional reasons only, such as a large-scale voluntary transfer of assets, the indicators may
be temporarily flexed to allow repayment and rescheduling of borrowing.

3

Page 28

Overview and Scrutiny Board
Work Programme and Recommendation Tracker as of 26th October 2021

SCHEDULE OF COMMITTEE DATES & AGENDA ITEMS
Date

3 November

Page 29

1 December

Topic

Responsible officer (s)




Mid-year Treasury Management report
Implementation of Customer Service Strategy progress/overview, including a focus on staff welfare

Councillor Hinds and Joanne Hardman
Councillor Hinds, Bentham and Steven Fry, Sam Betts





Corporate Performance Report – half year report
Q2 Budget Monitoring Report
Spending Review 2022/23 - Update
(timescales/announcements permitting)
Audit and Accounts Committee Update (including issues
relating to the Statement of Accounts)

Councillor Kelly and Jacquie Russell
Councillor Hinds and Joanne Hardman



January

Councillors R Garrido, Simon Bleckly & Joanne
Hardman

2 February




Treasury Management Strategy
Revenue Budget and Capital Programme

Councillor Hinds and Joanne Hardman
Councillor Hinds and Joanne Hardman

2 March





Q3 Budget Monitoring Report
Pandemic Recovery – Workforce & Digital Update
Financial Investment overview of the University/Council
Master Plan (from abeyance list)

Councillor Hinds and Joanne Hardman
Councillors Hinds & Bentham, Steven Fry & Sam Betts
Councillor Hinds and Joanne Hardman

Agenda Item 6

No Meeting

1

6 April




Ethical Procurement Update (Including monitoring of social
value portal since its launch in March 2021) (from abeyance
list)
Scrutiny Panels - 6 monthly updates

Councillor Hinds and Jacquie Russell tbc and Anthony
Hilton
Panel chairs and Debbie Brown tbc

ABEYANCE LIST

Greater Manchester Integrated Care System - dissolution of
existing CCG and creation of locality place-based board for
Salford - overview and implications, including financial ones.

Timeframe to be confirmed as soon as possible

Page 30

Councillor Hinds and Joanne Hardman
Councillor Merry and Charlotte Ramsden
Any relevant invitee(s) from CCG to be confirmed

Fair Funding Review – updates as and when available will be
included in reports

Councillor Hinds and Joanne Hardman

Business Rates Retention Scheme - updates as and when
available will be included in reports.

Councillor Hinds and Joanne Hardman

Elected Member Development and Training, including:
o Scrutiny Training for Chairs

SCHEDULE OF REGULAR MONITORING REPORTS

Corporate Performance report

Councillor Kelly and Jacquie Russell
2

Half year report – December & end of year report July

Councillor Hinds and Joanne Hardman

Treasury Management Outturn Report – schedule September each year.

Councillor Hinds and Joanne Hardman

Mid-year Treasury Management report – schedule November each year

Councillor Hinds and Joanne Hardman

Revenue Budget and Capital Programme. Schedule February each year.

Councillor Hinds and Joanne Hardman

1st Quarter Budget Monitoring Report. Schedule September each year

Councillor Hinds and Joanne Hardman

2nd Quarter Budget Monitoring Report - Schedule December each year.

Councillor Hinds and Joanne Hardman

3rd Quarter Budget Monitoring Report – Schedule March each year.

Councillor Hinds and Joanne Hardman

4th Quarter - Outturn Report. Schedule July each year.

Cllr Hinds and Joanne Hardman

Page 31

Treasury Management Strategy. Schedule February each year.

REVIEWS

No reviews planned at present.
3

RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER

No recommendations presently outstanding

Membership – 10 Members:

Portfolio of the Board:

1.To co-ordinate the work of the Scrutiny Panels.
2. To scrutinise corporate services.

Page 32

3. To conduct a programme of value for money scrutinies.
4. To consider reports from the Audit and Accounts Committee.
5. To scrutinise overall budget matters and all other financial
matters, including the Treasury Management Strategy.
6. To receive reports from the Scrutiny Panels on a six-monthly
basis.

Councillors











Bellamy (Vice-chair)
Brocklehurst
Burch
Dickman
Garrido, Karen
Pevitt
Reynolds, Gina (Chair)
Sharpe
Turner
Walsh, Joan

7. To consider requests for scrutiny reviews under the Councillor
Call for Action process (other than calls for action relating to
Crime and Disorder matters where requests shall be referred
directly to the Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel.

4

